
 

 Please identify the current fees associated with the administration of the OPA‟s three Transit Benefit 

Programs along with the incumbent vendors? 

See attached information about current contracts and pricing. 

 

 Will all enrollments in each plan be collected via online or manually by the City of New York? Will they 

need any assistance by the vendor to collect enrollment?  If not will all enrollments are included on the file 

mentioned in Section III part D under Enrollment Data?   

Our goal is to use online technology as much as possible; however, we may need to accommodate 

certain manual processes.  

 

 The Enrollment Data File that the OPA will be sending over to the chosen vendor, one of the fields 

mentioned in the file would be „Transit Benefit Program(s) in which the employee is enrolled, as updated.‟  

Could you please clarify what type of data will be contained in that field?  Will it be a ticket type i.e. LIRR 

pass, Metro Card or will it be a dollar amount or just the option of whether or not the employee is 

participating in the transit benefit and/or parking program without any information on deduction amounts or 

pass type? 

The information in that field will be limited to the types of programs we currently administer, the 

annual premium Metrocard, the TSA Debit card or the Access-a-Ride program.     

 

 We need more clarification around what is being asked in Section III part D page 12 at the bottom of the 

page where it states: 

 

o OPA may provide the selected vendor(s) with a file containing information about participants in 

one or more of the existing transit benefit programs listed in Section III C as part of a transition 

process to new programs under contracts negotiated after the RFP process.  

Our goal is to provide a seamless transition for our employees, where possible.  

 

 Would the City of New York have an active enrollment if you choose a new vendor? 

An active enrollment is possible as part of a transition.  

 

 Section III part D page 5-It states 

o  „The City intends to send ACH transactions on a daily basis to the vendor(s) to transfer deduction 

amounts into participant Transit Benefit accounts.  Funds for transit benefit accounts must be 

available on the pay date.‟ 

Is the City looking to set up funding account for each participant in the plan?  Or would a common funding 

account for the City of New York‟s participants be acceptable where the vendor makes deduction amounts 

available to the participants on their pay date and debits the common account as the participant uses their 

funds? 

We are open to any suggestions provided this is accomplished by ACH. 

 

 Is the City of New York considering a vendor that can handle “Smart Card technology” as one of the 

options? Based on the MTA‟s future vision this is something that they may be considering for subways and 

buses.   

Yes. 

 

 What is your open records policy regarding the current price?  Under the freedom of information act, we 

request that the current pricing information be formally released.  

See attached information about current contracts and pricing. 

 

 

 



 Please expand on the geographic parking limitations the City wants to impose.  

If there are any restrictions on parking, that would have to be included as part of the process of 

administering the Transit Benefit Program.  At this point, we are waiting for confirmation of any 

restrictions that would be required by the City for the parking benefit.  As indicated in the RFP, we 

anticipate that those restrictions would be related to geographic location (e.g. parking permitted 

outside Manhattan or the City limits) and a connection to mass transportation facilities (e.g. parking 

permitted in a lot adjacent to a regional railroad station, bus station, etc.) Limitations will be designed 

to encourage the use of mass transit.  We are open to proposers’ suggestions on how to handle these 

issues.   

 

 Is the City open to allowing the vendor to handle enrollments or will ESS continue to handle the enrollment 

process?  This assumes the City is able to send the entire eligible population to the vendor.  

We don’t foresee sending the records for the entire eligible population to the City. 
 

 Who are the current providers for the debit card and Access-A-Ride coupons?  

JPMC and TransitCenter 

 

 Is it correct to assume that the employee must have the proper deduction before the transit benefit is 

delivered?  

The vendor is to have received monies from the City before the employee can use the benefit. The 

employee may receive a benefit instrument prior to use. 

 

 Can you provide us with a copy of your legal contract for our review?  

Terms and Conditions in substantially the form that will be required by the City have been provided 

with the RFP.  The ultimate contract will need to be negotiated between the City and the successful 

proposer(s).  
 

 By month, what is your current call volume?   

900+ Calls Monthly  
 

 Is there a common theme to reasons for the majority of calls on the premium Metrocard? 

Yes, the calls are mainly about lost/stolen/damaged cards. 
 

 What is the number of participants and the average handle time?  

There are 55,965 employees enrolled in the TransitChek program and 4,083 enrolled in the TSA 

program.  Average handle time via phone calls is approximately five minutes.  Average handle time at 

our replacement window is less than five minutes. 
 

 Can we see call volume by day and by half hour for a couple of months?  

We don't capture that information currently. Current work volume precludes us from actual count. 

 

 Can we see the call center statistics from your current vendor?  

No, we cannot provide those statistics. 
 

 In regards to Attachment G - Supply and Service Employer Report, is the form you want filled out 

available?  I pulled one that I think addresses the issue from the NYC.gov web site: 

 http://home2.nyc.gov/html/hhc/downloads/pdf/supserv_report.pdf 

 <http://home2.nyc.gov/html/hhc/downloads/pdf/supserv_report.pdf>.   However, I am not sure if this is 

the most up to date/applicable form. Clarification would be great.  

As mentioned in the RFP, the Supply and Service Employer Report is not required with the 

submission.  However, the Supply and Service forms can be accessed using the link below: 

http://www.nyc.gov/html/sbs/html/procurement/dls.shtml 

http://home2.nyc.gov/html/hhc/downloads/pdf/supserv_report.pdf
http://home2.nyc.gov/html/hhc/downloads/pdf/supserv_report.pdf
http://www.nyc.gov/html/sbs/html/procurement/dls.shtml


 

 

 The RFP states that the four supplementary pieces (the tax affirmation form, the Vendex memorandum, the 

doing business form and the supply and service report) fall under the category of "Only to be provided upon 

contract award."  (See section 4, page 24.)  Are these forms required at this stage? 

No, they are only to be provided if a proposer is awarded a contract. 

 

 Can you confirm that the TSA card is ONLY used to purchase MetroCards for use on New York City 

Transit subways, local buses and express buses?  If so, how do the employees living in NJ take advantage of 

the program? 

Yes, we can confirm that the TSA card can only be used to purchase Metrocards for use on New York 

City Transit subways, local buses and express buses and nothing else.  We can confirm that the TSA 

card cannot be used to purchase any commuter tickets for NJ riders or used at NJ Transit vending 

machines.  They can be used however to purchase a Metrocard that can be used on the PATH subway 

line. 
 

 As per our conversation last week, are you able to provide the existing program contracts as well as original 

proposals (winning and losing)? 

See attached information regarding current and prior contracts.   

 

 Based on the payroll deduction schedules, is it possible to put in place a requirement that the Transit Benefit 

Account will be funded from the first two pay periods per month? Would this put an undue hardship on the 

employees who have a weekly payroll with 52 pay dates per year?  

We foresee issues for those who are paid the first and third pay dates in a month. Vendors would need 

to explain what they would propose for the weekly paid employees who are paid 4-5 times a month 

and what will occur when, similar to 12/2008, the Q pay cycle has 3 pay dates in December and one in 

November. 

 

 Please describe the exact criteria and limitations put into place for the parking benefit.  For example, will 

employees who drive to work be eligible for a parking benefit or is it only in conjunction with the use of 

transit? The RFP mentions certain restrictions. 

There are two overriding concerns that we have with the program that we put in place.  One is that it 

be administered so that we maintain the pre tax status (eligibility status) of participants as directed or 

specified by the Internal Revenue Code.  Second is the efficiency of the program we put in place. 

 

That said, there are a number of different kinds of benefit programs which we have included in this 

RFP and we look forward to reading your vendor proposals explaining how you would propose to 

administer those programs, including the provision of a parking benefit. 

 

One example that was mentioned in the RFP was a reimbursement model, where an employee would 

spend their own money for the services and then request reimbursement out of an account which is 

being funded from the pre-tax payroll deductions. That model would then allow for an administrative 

review of submitted expenses to ensure they were allowable parking expenditures.   

 

If there are any restrictions on parking, that would have to be included as part of the process of 

administering the Transit Benefit Program.  At this point we are waiting for confirmation of any 

restrictions that would be required by the City for the parking benefit.  As indicated in the RFP, we 

anticipate that those restrictions would be related to geographic location (e.g. parking permitted 

outside Manhattan or the City limits) and a connection to mass transportation facilities (e.g. parking 

permitted in a lot adjacent to a regional railroad station, bus station, etc.) Limitations will be designed 

to encourage the use of mass transit.  We are open to proposers’ suggestions on how to handle these 

issues.  



 

 Please describe the enrollment process that a City employee goes through currently and what the proposed 

process will be.  Is it the intent of the City to develop a new enrollment process for City employees based on 

the recommendations from the chosen vendor?  We assume from the RFP that the City will develop the 

enrollment process based on recommendations of the provider and that the City will build the system at its 

own expense. Is this assumption correct? 

The employee is enrolled in the TransitBenefit process via their agency coordinator and the 

information is entered into the PMS System.  The coordinators must adhere to the schedule provided 

to them by OPA.  Subsequently, OPA then sends the employee TransitBenefit enrollment information 

to the vendor once each month.  The file will contain City, BOE and NYCHA enrollment information.  

Newly participating employees whose deduction parameters are entered into PMS prior to the 

transmission of enrollment data to the vendor will receive their Metrocards via US mail at their 

designated mailing addresses in time for use on the first day of the second month following the 

transmission. 
 

 Will you include the Bicycle Benefit approved for January, 2009 and now part of 132 (f) as part of Transit 

Benefit Services for your employees?  Should the vendor include this benefit in their recommendations? 

(must be an employer-paid subsidy of $20 per month).   

A bicycle benefit is not currently included as part of this RFP.  

 

 When an employee‟s participation in the benefit program is ended and funds are left in the employee‟s 

benefit account, do you require that the funds are returned to the City?   

Yes. 

 

 Does it matter whether the funds are pretax or post-tax as to whom or whether the funds are returned?             

All funds are to be returned to the city.  
 

 Has the city‟s legal counsel given an opinion on the interpretation of cash reimbursement for these types of 

benefits?  Specifically, the 1 percent rule referring to cash reimbursement, offered as a transit benefit in 

areas with passes and vouchers readily available? 

If relevant and part of a proposal for this RFP, proposers should address their own interpretation 

and effect of Internal Revenue Service regulations in this area.  The City’s legal counsel will review 

the issue and its relevance based on proposals received.         

 








































































































